
DURHAM PLANNING BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Durham Town Offices, 6:30 p.m. 
August 2, 2023 

NOTE: No public comment will be taken on individual applications at the meeting 
unless the Board schedules a formal public hearing with required notice posted.  
Comments on applications can be submitted in writing to the Town Planner and will be 
forwarded to the Planning Board and the applicants. 

1. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum

2. Amendments to the Agenda

3. Acceptance of the Minutes of Prior Meetings (July 5, 2023)

4. Informational Exchange on Non-Agenda Items:
a) Town Officials
b) Residents (Public comment will be taken)
c) Non-Residents (Public comment will be taken)

5. New Business:
a) Conditional Use Application for expansion of the Leisure Campground for 112 RV

sites, Map 2, Lot 13 (Public comment will not be taken)

6. Other Business:
a) Board Discussion of Draft Land Use Ordinance Amendments (Public comment will

not be taken)



3. Acceptance of the Minutes of Prior Meetings (July 5, 2023)

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 2



1. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum

In attendance:  John Talbot (Chair), Juliet Caplinger (Vice Chair), Allan Purinton, 
Tyler Hutchison, Brian Lanoie (Alternate), and George Thebarge (Town Planner). 

Absent:  Ron Williams and Anne Torregrossa 

Guest:  Charles Burnham (Applicant: Deer Creek) 

2. Amendments to the Agenda: None

3. Acceptance of the Minutes of prior meeting (June 7, 2023)

Juliet Caplinger moved to accept the minutes from the June 7, 2023 meeting as 
presented.  Tyler Hutchison seconded. Motion carried 4-0. 

4. Informational Exchange on Non-Agenda Items:

a.) Town Officials – None 

b.) Residents – None 

c.) Non-residents – None 

5. Continuing Business

a.) Substantive Review of Final Plan Application for the Deer Creek Crossing 
Subdivision Map 7, Lot 32A (Public comment will not be taken) 

Opening Remarks (Town Planner) 

• Application was tabled on June 7th, 2023 at the request of the applicant.
• Applicant has since received the permit for the stream crossing from the Army

Corps of Engineers.
• Peer Reviewer, Will Haskell, has indicated that the applicant has satisfied all

peer-reviewed comments including the hydraulic calculations for the fire
pond.

• The Fire Chief has indicated acceptance of the fire pond design.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 3



Subdivision Review Criteria 

1. Pollution

Motion made by Tyler Hutchison: The proposed subdivision will not result in
undue water or air pollution. In making this determination, the Board has considered
the five adopted criteria for pollution, and the applicant has submitted evidence and
testimony of compliance with the performance standards for elevation of land and
relation to floodplain management contained in Section 6.25, for soils and wastewater
disposal in Section 6.19, for management under Section 6.17 and 6.28, and for state
and local health rules under Section 6.16 for water supply, 6.19 for sewage disposal,
and 6.24 for impact on groundwater quality.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4  Votes to deny: 0

2. Sufficient Water

Motion made by Juliet Caplinger: The proposed subdivision will be served by
individual wells per the requirements of Section 6.16.A. and B., and the proposed fire
protection water supply has been reviewed and approved by the Fire Chief per the
requirements of Section 6.16.C.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

3. Erosion

Motion made by Allan Purinton: The proposed subdivision will prevent soil
erosion and sedimentation through the procedures outlined in the erosion and
sedimentation control plan meeting the requirements of Appendix 2 as determined by
the Town’s peer review engineer. Topsoil will be retained and used on site.
Motion seconded by John Talbot:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

4. Traffic

Motion made by John Talbot: The proposed subdivision will not create
unreasonable highway or public road congestion or unsafe conditions. Sight distances
on Hallowell Road are adequate, and the slight intersection offset with Patriot Way
does not constitute a safety hazard. The roadway serving the subdivision has adequate
capacity to serve the anticipated levels of traffic and all road construction will meet
the engineering standards of Appendix 1 as determined by the Town’s peer review
engineer.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 4



5. Sewage Disposal

Motion made by Tyler Hutchison: The proposed subdivision will provide for
adequate sewage waste disposal. Soil test pits have been submitted to document that
each lot will have a septic system location that meets Maine wastewater disposal rules
without the need for a variance or off-site easement.
Motion seconded by Juliet Caplinger:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

6. Municipal Solid Waste Disposal

Motion made by Juliet Caplinger: Solid waste generated by the proposed
subdivision can be accommodated within the capacity of the Town’s current solid
waste disposal services.
Motion seconded by John Talbot:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

7. Aesthetic, Cultural, and Natural Values

Motion made by Allan Purinton: The project will not have undue adverse effects on
aesthetic, cultural, and natural values. The project limits clearing of trees to those
areas designated on the plan and maintains a 50-foot vegetative buffer along existing
roadways. The applicant has consulted with State agencies on historic resources,
significant wildlife habitat, and unique natural areas, and available data indicates the
absence of such natural and cultural resources on or adjacent to the project site.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

8. Conformity with Local Ordinances and Plans

Motion made by John Talbot: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with
requirements of the Land Use Ordinance, which is consistent with the Comprehensive
Plan. The Code Enforcement Officer has conducted inspections of the project site and
determined that there are no current violations of the Land Use Ordinance and that
standards of the Aquifer Protection District will be met with the proposed road
construction.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

9. Financial and Technical Capacity

Motion made by Tyler Hutchison: The applicant has demonstrated financial
capacity under Section 6.23.A. by submitting engineering cost estimates for required
improvements. A conditional agreement per Section 6.34.C. will require the
completion of all project infrastructure prior to sale of lots or issuance of building
permits until a performance guarantee is approved by the Board. The applicant has

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 5



demonstrated adequate technical capacity under Section 6.23.B. through the 
submission of technical drawings and studies that have been per reviewed, and 
through the provision of an inspection escrow fund to verify satisfactory completion 
of the project improvements, which is a condition of final approval. 
Motion seconded by Juliet Caplinger: 
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 4 

10. Surface Waters

Motion made by Juliet Caplinger: The proposed subdivision is not located within
the watershed of Runaround Pond and is not located on property subject to mandatory
shoreland zoning. Construction of the new stream crossing and removal of the
existing stream crossing have been approved by the Maine Department of
Environmental Protection and Army Corps of Engineers. The stormwater treatment
facilities have been moved away from the stream in accordance with DEP standards.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

11. Groundwater

Motion made by Allan Purinton: Septic systems will be required to meet the Maine
subsurface wastewater disposal rules and wells will be required to meet State rules for
well drilling, including the well exclusion zones on each lot as shown on the
subdivision plan. There are no documented problems with obtaining an adequate
supply of potable water in the project area, and the density of the proposed
development and projected household water consumption do not raise concerns for
the effect of ground water withdrawals.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

12. Flood Areas

Motion made by John Talbot: No development is proposed within areas mapped as
being flood-prone.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

13. Fresh Water Wetlands

Motion made by Tyler Hutchison: All freshwater wetlands within the proposed
subdivision have been mapped by qualified professionals.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 6



14. Farmland

Motion made by Juliet Caplinger: There is no active farmland nor prime farmland
of five or more acres within the project site.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

15. River, Stream, or Brook

Motion made by Allan Purinton: All streams meeting the definition of a regulated
stream under the Natural Resources Protection Act have been identified on maps by
the applicant and appropriate stream buffers are shown on the subdivision plan.
Motion seconded by John Talbot:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

16. Storm Water

Motion made by John Talbot: Per Section 5.28.B., the applicant has submitted a
stormwater management plan meeting the requirements of DEP regulations and that
stormwater management plan has been peer reviewed. The applicant will follow the
detail on the stormwater treatment basin provided by Gorrill Palmer Associates on
March 1, 2023.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

17. Spaghetti-Lots Prohibited

Motion made by Tyler Hutchison: No lots are proposed within an area regulated by
Mandatory Shoreland Zoning that would violate the “spaghetti-lot” rule.
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

18. Great Pond Phosphorus Concentration

Motion made by Juliet Caplinger: The project site is not located within the
watershed of Runaround Pond.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

19. Impact on Adjoining Municipalities

Motion made by Allan Purinton: The proposed residential subdivision will not
generate levels of traffic that would cause unreasonable traffic congestion within
Durham or any adjacent municipality.
Motion seconded by John Talbot:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 7



20. Land Subject to Liquidation Harvesting

Motion made by John Talbot: The applicant has submitted certification by a
licensed forester that timber harvesting on the site was conducted in compliance with
Maine forestry management rules.
Motion seconded by Tyler Hutchison:
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0

Cluster Subdivsion Approval 

Motion made by Tyler Hutchison: The proposed subdivision meets the intent of 
clustering lots to allow for creation of open space, to provide recreational 
opportunities, and to protect important natural features and complies with the density 
limitations and design standards for cluster developments of Section 6.33.B. 
Motion seconded by Allan Purinton: 
Votes to approve: 4 Votes to deny: 0 

Decision on Final Plan Application 

The Planning Board reviewed the draft Subdivision Approval Decision Findings of 
Fact prepared by the Town Planner and voted on compliance of the subdivision 
application with each of the twenty subdivision review criteria and cluster 
development plan, with a majority finding that the project did, in fact, satisfy all of 
the review criteria and the purposes of clustering. 

John Talbot moved, Allan Purinton seconded, and the Board voted 4 – 0 for 
approval of the final subdivision application with the twelve approval conditions 
as amended. 

Date of Final Approval: July 5, 2023 

6. Adjourn

Allan Purinton motioned to adjourn, Tyler Hutchison seconded, motion carried 4 – 0.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 8



5. New Business:
a. Conditional Use Application for expansion of the Leisure Campground for 112

RV sites, Map 2, Lot 13.

TOWN PLANNER COMMENTS: 

• Durham Leisure Holdings LLC is seeking conditional use approval for an
expansion of the Leisure Campground.

• The application indicates that the current use is a seasonal RV park with 36
sites and the proposed expansion will add another 112 sites in phases of 30 to
40 new sites per year.

• One issue in the application that should be clarified is whether the proposal is
for a seasonal or year-round RV park.  Page 2 of the application states that “we
are mostly a seasonal RV park” but goes on to state that the applicant seeks to
“extend the length of rental time for customers.”

• Section 5.8.J establishes occupancy time limits of 12 weeks for a period between
May 15 and September 15 and 2 weeks at all other times. The applicant should
either propose other specific time frames or approval of a year-round RV park.

• Seasonal and year-round RV parks are not listed in the Land Use Ordinance as a
specific permitted or conditional use. As a use, RV parks are somewhere
between a campground and a mobile home park in terms of use and intensity.

• Section 3.1.31 of the Durham Land Use Ordinance is a catch-all provision for
such unspecified commercial uses, and the conditional use application seeks
approval as a “commercial service not otherwise listed.”

• The development of the road network and RV parking pads will trigger site plan
review of the project under Section 8.2.C.

• In 2019, the Land Use Ordinance was updated to create a 2-step process for
review of such nonresidential uses.

• The first step is a conditional use review to look at the proposed use and
determine whether it will meet the criteria for protecting public health, safety,
and the environment.  The Board will also look at the scale and intensity of the
proposed use and determine whether it will be “compatible” with existing uses
in the neighborhood, as well as looking at the potential for noise generation.

• If the Planning Board determines that the project can meet the general
conditional use criteria, it would then review the more detailed project design
under the site plan review criteria and standards of Article 8 as a separate
application.

• The subsequent site plan review process will look at utilization of the project
site in terms of using the most suitable portions of the site and keeping

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 9



development away from sensitive areas like wetlands. 

• Site plan review will also look at the adequacy of the road system, vehicular
access to the site, and circulation within it. The Board will also consider in
detail the utility systems (water, sewer, electrical), lighting, signage, and fire
protection. Finally, the Board can consider whether any special buffering is
needed to screen public views or neighbors.

• For the current conditional use review, the applicant has submitted a
completed conditional use application form with supporting documentation.

• Recognizing that this project will need to go through a detailed site plan review,
the Board can discuss and decide whether the documentation provided by the
applicant is adequate to make a decision on compliance with the conditional
use criteria of Section 7.4.

• If the Board determines that the documentation is adequate, you can decide on
the need for a site walk and public hearing and schedule those events.

• If the Board determines that the documentation is not adequate, you should
notify the applicant of what information needs to be submitted for the Board to
consider the application to be complete.

• If a majority of the Board determines that the applicant can meet the general
conditional use criteria for expansion of the campground and conversion to a
seasonal RV park, the applicant can proceed with detailed engineering design of
the project to meet site plan review standards.

• The Town Planner has prepared draft findings of fact reflecting the applicant’s
current submissions that can be expanded during the Board’s processing of the
application and will serve as the template for making a decision to approve,
approve with conditions, or deny the application.

• The draft findings of fact can also be used by the Board to identify information
needed to make a determination on compliance with the conditional use
criteria.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 10



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 11



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 12



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 13



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 14



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 15



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 16



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 17



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 18



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 19



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 20



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 21



TOWN OF DURHAM 
630 Hallowell Road 
Durham, Maine 04222 

Office of Code Enforcement               Tel. (207) 376-6558 
and Planning   Fax: (207) 353-5367 

CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL DECISION 
FINDING OF FACTS 

Approved __________________ 

PROJECT NAME:  Leisure Campground Expansion  

Section 7.4 CONDITIONAL USE REVIEW CRITERIA 

A. Review Criteria:  Before it issues a conditional use permit, the Planning Board shall find, as
a matter of fact, that the proposed use meets the following criteria:

1. Public Health Impacts: The proposed use will not create unsanitary or unhealthful
conditions by reason of sewage disposal, emissions to the air or water, or other aspects of
its design or operation.

a. All RV sites will be provided with sewer hookups.
b. The applicant will construct a sewer collection piping system that will deliver wastewater

from the RV sites to five wastewater disposal fields each serving between 22 and 24 sites.
c. The applicant submitted a preliminary site evaluation by Stewart’s Soil & Septic

verifying that soils are adequate to support the proposed wastewater disposal system.
d. The preliminary site evaluation shows 300-foot well exclusion zones required for the

common wells used by the campground.
e. The applicant’s submissions are inconsistent as to whether septic treatment fields will be

in well exclusion zones.
f. The applicant submitted a hand-drawn layout of the sewer conveyance lines to the septic

fields.
g. The applicant submitted a hand-drawn layout of the water distribution system.
h. The applicant submitted a communication from Scott P Temple documenting a flow test

on a drilled well in 2016 that produced 28,800 gallons per day.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 22



Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for public health impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

2. Traffic Safety Impacts: The proposed use will not create unsafe vehicular or pedestrian
traffic conditions when added to existing and foreseeable traffic in its vicinity.

Findings:

a. The applicant submitted an email from Tony Fontaine of the Maine Department of
Transportation stating that MDOT has no record of an Entrance Permit being issued for
the location.

b. The email further indicates that the entrance is “grandfathered” per MDOT Access
Management regulations as long as there is no change in use.

c. The email goes on to state that the entrance predates MDOT regulations that went into
effect in May of 2002 and no permit review would be needed to expand its use.

d. The entrance is located on Route 136, a State Highway that has regular traffic as well as
trucking traffic.

e. The applicant has stated that there would be a slow increase in traffic due to the phasing
and seasonal nature of the use.

f. The applicant has provided no details on the internal circulation drives in terms of widths
or directions of travel lanes or on pedestrian facilities.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for traffic safety impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

3. Public Safety Impacts: The proposed use will not create public safety problems which
would be substantially different from those created by existing uses in the neighborhood
or require a substantially greater degree of municipal services than existing uses in the
neighborhood.

Findings:

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 23



a. The applicant has stated that no school enrollment will be generated by the project.
b. The applicant has stated that no buildings are associated with the expansion that

would require fire protection.
c. The applicant doesn’t foresee any need for increased law enforcement.
d. The applicant has provided no information as to the proposed internal drive system to

verify access for Public Safety vehicles.
e. There is an existing transmission tower on the property and the applicant has

provided documents indicating easements exist for that use.
f. The applicant has not provided information as to whether the presence of the tower

will present any safety issues for RV park residents in terms of fall zones from the
tower or access to the tower by unauthorized personnel.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for public safety impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

4. Environmental Impacts: The proposed use will not result in sedimentation or erosion or
have an adverse effect on water supplies.

Findings:

a. The applicant has submitted a Wetland, Stream, and Cursory Vernal Pool Delineation
Report performed by Main-Land Development Consultants, Inc.

b. That report indicates that no significant vernal pools or potential vernal pools exist on
the site.

c. The report indicates that no streams are on the site.
d. The report indicates the presence of a small vernal pool of just under 2000 sq. ft. that

appears to be a man-made pond located between Route 136 and the gravel access
road near the front of the property.

e. The Existing Conditions Plan shows a much larger wetland system located between
the transmission tower and the proposed expansion that is not mentioned in the report.

f. The applicant has stated that all sites are wooded and minimal clearing of trees will
occur.

g. The applicant has stated that future sites and roads will be built off existing logging
roads.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for environmental impacts. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 24



5. Scale & Intensity of Use: The proposed use will be compatible with existing uses in the
neighborhood, with respect to physical size, visual impact, intensity of use, and proximity
to other structures.

Findings:

a. The applicant has stated that the area is characterized by residential homes, home
businesses, commercial businesses and farms.

b. The applicant has stated that the nearest house is 400 feet away. It is not clear if that
distance is from the property line, the existing RV park, or the proposed expansion.

c. The applicant has stated that all RVs will be screened by the natural landscape.
d. The applicant has stated that from 400 of 100 feet minimum from property line.
e. The applicant refers to a Google map submitted with the application.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for scale and intensity of use. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

6. Noise & Hours of Operation: The proposed use will be compatible with existing uses in
the neighborhood, with respect to the generation of noise and hours of operation.

Findings:

a. The applicant has stated that office hours are 9:00 to 9:00.
b. The applicant has stated that pool hours are 9:00 to dusk.
c. The applicant has stated that quiet time is 10:00 pm to 7:00 am.
d. The applicant has stated that the occupants are mostly seasonal workers and are very

quiet.
e. The applicant has stated that there is no tenting.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for noise & hours of operation. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

7. Right, Title, or Interest: The applicant has sufficient right, title or interest in the site of
the proposed use to be able to carry out the proposed use.

Findings:

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 25



a. The applicant submitted an Agent’s Certificate identifying Kenneth P. Huot and
Gwenn M. Huot as company members of Durham Leisure Holdings LLC.

b. The applicant submitted a 2016 annual filing report with the Maine Secretary of State
characterizing Durham Leisure Holdings LLC as a land holding company.

c. The applicant submitted a deed of transfer from the estate of Harold Cochrane to
Durham Leisure Holdings LLC.

d. The applicant submitted two exhibits for a communications and access and utility
easements along with a map showing access to the transmission tower.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for right, title, or interest. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

8. Financial & Technical Ability: The applicant has the financial and technical ability to
meet the standards of this Section and to comply with any conditions imposed by the
Planning Board pursuant to subsection 7.5.

Findings:

a. The applicant stated that the project is estimated to cost $700,000 +/- and the project
will be financed from personal savings.

b. The applicant submitted a letter from Bangor Savings Bank stating that the applicant
has deposit accounts in excess of $675,000.

c. The applicant submitted a receipt from the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers.

d. The applicant submitted a hand drawn electrical distribution system.
e. The applicant submitted a campground license from the Maine Department of Health

and Human Services.
f. The applicant stated he is using Main-Land Development as a consultant.

Motion made by ______________________: The applicant has (or has not) satisfied a 
reasonable burden of proof of compliance with the criterion for financial & technical ability. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

Section 7.5  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
A. Planning Board Approval Conditions:  Upon consideration of the criteria listed in

subsection 7.4, the Planning Board may by majority vote attach such conditions, in
addition to those required by other provisions of this Ordinance, as it finds necessary to

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 26



ensure compliance with those criteria and all other applicable requirements of this 
Ordinance. Violation of any of those conditions shall be a violation of this Ordinance. 

Motion made by ______________________: To apply the following conditions of approval 
to the permit for conditional use. 
Motion seconded by ______________________: 
Votes to approve: ____ Votes to deny:____ 

1. .

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 27



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 28



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 29



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 30



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 31



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 32



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 33



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 34



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 35



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 36



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 37



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 38



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 39



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 40



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 41



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 42



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 43



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 44



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 45



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 46



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 47



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 48



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 49



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 50



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 51



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 52



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 53



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 55



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 56



PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 57



6. Other Business:

a. Board Discussion of Draft Land Use Ordinance Amendments

7. At the July 10 Planning Board workshop, the Board endorsed moving forward with a
combined proposal for presentation of the draft amendments for complying with the
new State law on housing density.

8. The slide presentation has been updated to reflect comments from Board members at
the workshop.

9. On Slide 4, the heading has been changed from “Durham Comprehensive Plan
Recommendation” to “Durham Comprehensive Plan Approach.”

10. The Comprehensive Plan recommends consideration of making allowance for multi-
family housing in 3-family and 4-family configurations:
2.1  With elimination of the Southwest Bend Growth District, consider allowing 3-unit and 4-unit
multifamily housing in addition to duplexes in the Rural Residential District with design
standards to make them compatible with typical Durham  housing (e.g., duplex with accessory
apartment, farmhouse-style 4-plex).

11. Although the proposal to allow a single-family home with 2 accessory apartments or a duplex
with 1 accessory apartment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan recommendation, the
Plan does not technically make that specific recommendation.

12. Slide 5 has been revised to describe “potential outcomes” of the Planning Board proposal to:

1. Follow the Comprehensive Plan for Smaller Accessory Apartments and

2. Follow LD 2003 for Full Sized Housing Units.

13. This small change in phraseology attempts to move away from the presentation of
“options” or “choices” for voters to simply and objectively presenting the anticipated results of
amending the Land Use Ordinance as proposed.

14. The message going forward would be that the Planning Board is recommending that
voters follow the Comprehensive Plan in terms of addressing housing needs for
Durham residents while also increasing lot sizes to offset the impacts of the State’s
requirement for increased housing density.

15. This approach is supported by the prior public participation process where survey
respondents were evenly split between those concerned about housing needs for
family members and those more concerned with the impacts of added housing.

16. The next phase of public participation can test the proposed Planning Board response
to those varied resident concerns.

17. The second part of the messaging will be that if Durham voters take no action on April
6 2024, the outcomes illustrated on Slide 5 will take effect on July 1 of next year.

18. In addition to these changes to the LD 2003 presentation, the Town Planner

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 58



contacted MMA legal services to explore two questions raised by Planning 
Board members at the workshop: 

1. Will landowners and developers be able to do both the multiple, full-sized
dwelling units and an accessory apartment under LD 2003?

2. Can Durham require an increased lot size for a second accessory dwelling
unit?

• The Town Planner also drafted a new definition of “housing unit” to enable
differentiating between the treatments of multiple accessory apartments and
multiple, full-sized dwelling units, applying increased lot size to the latter
situation required by LD 2003.

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 59



LD 2003 Implementation
BASELINE IMPACTS OF THE 
LEGISLATION ON DURHAM

WHAT WILL CHANGE?

WHAT ARE THE OPTIONS 
FOR RESPONDING TO 
THE STATE MANDATE?

1

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 60



Current Durham Requirements 

• 2 Acre Lot for a Single-Family
• 300 Ft Road Frontage

SINGLE-FAMILY TWO-FAMILY (DUPLEX)

• 21/2 Acre Lot for a Two-Family
• 300 Ft Road Frontage

• 1 Accessory Apartment
• 50% Floor Area of House
• Maximum of 2 Housing Units

• No Accessory Apartment
• Maximum of 2 Housing Units

Single-Family
Two-Family

Add 1/2 Acre for 2nd

Full-Size Dwelling

2

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 61



LD 2003 Requirements (Effective July 1, 2024)

• Must allow 2 Dwelling Units on a vacant lot
• Can be Duplex or 2 Single-Family Homes
• Maximum of 2 Units
• Can Require 2 Acres per Dwelling Unit
• (Without Town Action by July 1 2024, Must Allow on 2 Acres)

VACANT LOT DEVELOPED LOT

• Must allow 3 Dwelling Units on a lot with an existing home
• Can be One Attached, One Detached, or One of Each
• Maximum of 3 Units
• Can Require 2 Acres per Dwelling Unit
• (Without Town Action by July 1 2024, Must Allow on 2.5 Acres)

Two-FamilyNew Single-Family
New Single-Family

Can add 2 Acres for 2nd

Full-Size Dwelling

Can add 4 Acres for 2nd

& 3rd Full-Size Dwellings

Existing Single-Family
Expanded to Two-Family

New Single-Family

3

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 62



DURHAM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN APPROACH

• Allow 2 Accessory Apartments with any Single-family home
• Limit Size to 50% of Main Dwelling Unit
• Maximum of 3 Housing Units

SINGLE-FAMILY TWO-FAMILY

• Reduce Lot Size from 21/2 Acres to 2 Acres for a Two-family home
• Allow 1 Accessory Apartment
• Limit Size to 50% of Either Dwelling Unit
• Maximum of 3 Housing Units

Accessory Apt

Accessory Apt

Accessory Apt

4

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 63



POTENTIAL OUTCOMES OF PLANNING BOARD PROPOSAL

• Single-Family with 2 Accessory Apartments
• 2-Acre Lot
• Maximum of 3 Housing Units

1. FOLLOW COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR SMALLER ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 2. FOLLOW LD 2003 FOR FULL SIZED HOUSING UNITS

• Two-Family with 1 Accessory Apartment
• 2-Acre Lot
• Maximum of 3 Housing Units

• 2 Single-Family Homes
• 4-Acre Lot
• Maximum of 2 Housing Units

• 1 Single-Family and 1 Two-Family
• 6-Acre Lot
• Maximum of 3 Housing Units

- OR --O
R 

-

5

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 64



LD 2003 Requirements (Effective July 1, 2024)

• Must allow 2 Dwelling Units on a vacant lot
• Can be Duplex or 2 Single-Family Homes
• Maximum of 2 Units
• Lot size is 90,000 sq. ft.

VACANT LOT DEVELOPED LOT

• Must allow 3 Dwelling Units on any lot with an existing home
• Can be One Attached, One Detached, or One of Each
• Maximum of 3 Units
• Lot size is 110,000 sq. ft.

Two-FamilyNew Single-FamilyNew Single-Family
Existing Single-Family
Expanded to Two-Family

New Single-Family

6

NeNNeNeNeNeNeNewwwwwww SiSiSiSiSiSSiSiSS ngngngngngnggn lelelelelelell ------FaFaFaFaFaFaFaFamimimimimimimimimiiimiiiiiiiiilylylylylylylylylyllyllllyyylylyylylylllyyylyllyllllyyyyylylllylylyyyyyyllylylylyyyyyylylylylylylylyyyyllyyyyyylyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyNeNeNeNeNeNeNeNeNNeNeNewwwwwwwwwww SiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSSSiSiSSiiSiSiiSSSSiiiiingngngngngnggngggleleleleleleleeleeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee-----FaFaFaFaFaFaFaFaFaamimimimimimimimilylylylylylyly

IF DURHAM VOTERS TAKE NO ACTION

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 65



ARTICLE 4:  SPATIAL STANDARDS IN ZONING DISTRICTS 
Section 4.1 DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS 

A. Rural Residential & Agricultural District
1. Minimum Lot Size Single-Family or Two-Family – 90,000 sq. ft.

a. Minimum Buildable Area – Each lot must contain a contiguous 40,000 sq. ft.
building envelope which does not contain areas in Resource Protection
District, wetlands, or slopes greater than twenty (20%) percent.

2. Minimum Access to Lots – Only one single family detached dwelling or two-
family dwelling shall be permitted on a lot.  No dwelling shall be erected except
on a lot that fronts on a street as defined, and the minimum street frontage,
measured along the lot line at the street, shall be at least equal to the minimum lot
width.

3. Minimum Road Frontage – 300 ft.
4. Minimum Setbacks

a. Front Lot Line Residential – 50 ft.
b. Front Lot Line Non-residential – 100 ft.
c. Side Lot Line Residential – 20 ft.
d. Side Lot Line Non-residential – 100 ft.
e. Rear Lot Line Residential – 20 ft.
f. Rear Lot Line Non-residential – 100 ft.

5. Maximum Structure Height1 – 35 ft.
a. For Schools and Municipal Structures – 50 ft.

6. Maximum Coverage for impervious surfaces (including structures) – 25%
7. Minimum Lot Area Size Two-Family Multiple Dwellings – 110,000 90,000 sq. ft.

per dwelling if the lot contains more than a single-family detached dwelling or a
two-family dwelling (accessory apartments are exempt from lot area
requirements).

8. Maximum Number of Housing Units per Lot- Three (3)
NOTE: To address future housing needs in Durham, the 2018 Comprehensive Plan 
recommends using the same lot size for a duplex (two-family) as a single-family home and 
allowing additional smaller accessory apartments on those lots to better fit neighborhoods 
and the Town’s rural character.  The State has mandated that additional housing units be 
added without size restrictions but allows lot sizes to be increased for those full-sized units. 
This “hybrid” proposal allows the smaller accessory apartments on standard lots to favor 
that outcome while requiring 2 acres per full-sized housing unit to discourage increased 
housing that detracts from neighborhood and rural character. Thus, building a single-

1 Features of structures such as chimneys, towers, spires and structures for electric power transmission and 
distribution lines may exceed the maximum structure height requirement. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 66



family home and a duplex on the same lot will require 6 acres of land. In both cases, the 
maximum number of housing units allowed on any lot with be three. Landowners will be 
able to pursue either option, multiple smaller housing units on a standard lot or multiple 
larger housing units on a larger lot. If the proposed Ordinance changes are not adopted, 
landowners will be legally entitled to build a single-family home and a duplex on 2.5 
acres as of July 1, 2024. 

ARTICLE 5: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
Section 4.1 ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 
The purpose of the provisions concerning accessory apartments is to provide a diversity of 
housing for town residents while protecting the single-family rural character of residential 
neighborhoods the community.  Accessory apartments may be utilized for rental purposes as 
well as in-law accommodations subject to the following requirements.  If the accessory 
apartment does not meet all of said requirements, then a conditional use permit shall be 
required:  

A. The dwelling shall have only one main entrance and all other entrances shall appear
subordinate to the main entrance.  An entrance leading to a foyer with entrances
leading from the foyer to the two dwelling units is permitted.  No open or enclosed
outside stairways shall be permitted above the first story.

B. The main dwelling unit shall have at least fifteen hundred (1500 sq. ft.) square feet of
floor area and the accessory apartment shall not exceed fifty (50%) percent of the
floor area of the main dwelling unit.  Floor area measurements shall not include
unfinished attic, basement or cellar spaces, nor public hallways or other common
areas.

C. Only one accessory apartment shall be permitted per lot.  It An accessory apartment
shall be made part of the main residence or located in a separate building whose
primary function is not as a dwelling unit, such as a garage or barn.

D. Accessory apartments shall not be permitted for any nonconforming structure or use,
where the nonconformity is due to the use of the premises, as opposed to
nonconforming dimensional requirements.

 NOTE: To address future housing needs in Durham, the 2018 Comprehensive Plan 
recommends using the same lot size for a duplex (two-family) as a single-family home and 
allowing additional smaller accessory apartments on those lots that better fit 
neighborhoods and the Town’s rural character.  When combined with changes to Articles 
4 (District Standards) and 9 (Definitions), the draft amendments will allow two smaller 
accessory apartments with a single-family home and one accessory apartment with a 
duplex for a maximum of three housing units on a 2-acre lot. A duplex and single-family 
home on the same lot will require 6 acres. While either option of smaller units or full-sized 
units will be allowed as required by State law, the changes will favor smaller units. If the 
proposed Ordinance changes are not adopted, landowners will be legally entitled to build a 
single-family home and a duplex on 2.5 acres as of July 1, 2024. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 67



ARTICLE 19: DEFINITIONS 
Section 19.1. DEFINITIONS 

ACCESSORY APARTMENT: A separate, secondary housing unit located on a 
property with a single-family or two-family dwelling that is subordinate to the main 
dwelling(s) in terms of size and use. 
DWELLING: Any building or structure or any portion thereof designed or used for 
residential purposes. 

a. Single-Family Dwelling: A Structure containing only one Dwelling Unit
for occupation by not more than one family. The terms shall include
modular homes and mobile homes as defined herein.

b. Two-Family Dwelling: A single Structure containing two Dwelling Units
on one parcel of land, such building being designed for residential use and
occupancy two families living independently of each other.

c. Multi-Family Dwelling: A single Structure containing three to six
Dwelling Units, where each Dwelling Unit is designed for residential
house and occupancy by a family living independently of families in the
other Dwelling Units.

DWELLING UNIT: A room or group of rooms, used primarily as living quarters for 
one Family, and that includes provisions for living, sleeping, cooking, and eating. 
The term shall not include hotel or motel rooms or suites, rooming house rooms, or 
similar accommodations. 
HOUSING UNIT: A room group of rooms designed and equipped exclusively for 
use as permanent living quarters for only one family at a time, and containing 
cooking, sleeping and toilet facilities, including accessory apartment, single-family 
dwelling, and two-family dwelling. 
MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING: See Dwellings. 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT: A room or group of rooms designed and 
equipped exclusively for use as permanent, seasonal, or temporary living quarters for 
only one family at a time, and containing cooking, sleeping and toilet facilities. The 
term shall include mobile homes and rental units that contain cooking, sleeping, and 
toilet facilities regardless of the time-period rented. Recreational vehicles are not 
residential dwelling units. [Article 9, Shoreland Zoning] 
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING: See Dwellings. 

NOTE: To address family housing needs, proposed amendments to the Land Use 
Ordinance will allow up to three housing units (new definition) on a lot in combinations of 
a single-family with two accessory apartments or a duplex with one accessory apartment. 
To address concerns for impacts on neighborhoods and rural character, lots that add full-
sized dwellings as the three allowable housing units will require two acres of land per 
dwelling unit. 

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 68



7/25/23, 12:05 PM Mail - George Thebarge - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADAwYmZmYzQ4LTc4MmQtNDJjZC1hMGQ3LTE0N2EwOThhYzMyMwAQAG58y5bBNBJOizkMKnk… 1/2

LD 2003 Implementation Follow-UP

George Thebarge <townplanner@durhammaine.gov>
Mon 7/17/2023 1:19 PM

To:Legal Services Department <legal@memun.org>
Cc:John Talbot <jtalbot@durhammaine.gov>;Alan Plummer <ceo@durhammaine.gov>

1 attachments (3 MB)
ATTACHMENTS FOR MMA LD 2003 QUESTIONS 7-17-2023.pdf;

I had previously received confirma�on that Durham's concept for a dual track approach to implemen�ng
LD 2003 (Ch 672) is viable.  Under this proposed set of amendments to the Land Use Ordinance, the
Town would allow the owner of a single-family home to add a second accessory apartment where the
current limit is one accessory apartment.  Similarly, the owner of a duplex would be allowed to add an
accessory apartment where none are currently allowed.  In both cases, the accessory apartments must
be limited in size to 50 percent of the main dwelling unit(s). Both op�ons would be available to every
owner of a 2-acre lot, which is the current minimum lot size.  This track is intended to implement
comprehensive plan recommenda�ons for increasing housing diversity while protec�ng neighborhoods
and the town's rural character from the visual impacts of increased housing density.

The second track is intended to comply with LD 2003's requirements for increased housing density with
full-sized housing units per Sec�on 3 of the new law that goes into effect on July 1, 2024.  As required by
Sec�on 3, mul�ple housing units on the same lot involving full-sized dwellings will, per Durham's
proposed changes, require a per dwelling land area of 2 acres. This track is intended to address ci�zen
concerns for impacts on the Town's rural character and town service costs. Thus, doing two single-family
homes on the same lot will require 4 acres of land and doing a single-family and a duplex will require 6
acres of land.

A�achment A contains the dra� amendments to implement these changes in the Durham Land Use
Ordinance and A�achment B contains diagrams illustra�ng the poten�al results of the changes.

In discussing this proposal at a recent workshop, Planning Board members raised a couple of ques�ons
that we would like MMA legal staff to address.  The first is whether a landowner/developer under the
second development track explained above would be able to claim a legal right to add an accessory
apartment (ADU) on top of the 3, full-sized housing units per Sec�on 4 of LD 2003, which requires
allowance for an accessory dwelling unit on any lot where a single-family home is permi�ed.  As
indicated in A�achment C, the language of DECD's dra� administra�ve rule clearly prohibited "double-
dipping," but it is unclear under the final rule language whether someone could add a fourth unit (ADU)
on the second Durham implementa�on track, notwithstanding the adop�on of Durham's changes that
will limit all lots to a maximum of three housing units.

Planning Board members also ques�oned whether the Town could legally apply the lot area per dwelling
unit of the second track to the first track if the increased lot area was only applied to the second,
(excess) accessory apartment.  Although the law states that towns cannot apply increased lot size for
one accessory dwelling unit, it doesn't clearly apply that restric�on to mul�ple accessory dwellings if the
municipality chooses to allow more density than required by LD 2003.  The majority of the Planning
Board do not seem inclined to move in that direc�on, but some members asked that we explore it as an
op�on.

So, the two ques�ons we are looking for guidance on at this point in the implementa�on process are:

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 69



7/25/23, 12:05 PM Mail - George Thebarge - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/sentitems/id/AAQkADAwYmZmYzQ4LTc4MmQtNDJjZC1hMGQ3LTE0N2EwOThhYzMyMwAQAG58y5bBNBJOizkMKnk… 2/2

1. Can a landowner who is allowed three, full-sized dwelling units on a 6-acre lot also claim the right

to add an accessory dwelling unit for a total of four housing units?

2. Can the Town require 4 acres of land area for a single-family home with 2 accessory
apartments/accessory dwelling units if the base density remains at 2 acres for a single-
family home and for a single-family home with one accessory apartment/accessory dwelling unit?

In response to earlier MMA inquiries, Durham has no designated growth areas or public u�li�es and
received a le�er of consistency from DACF in 2019 for an exemp�on from the growth/rural areas
requirements of the Maine Growth Management Act.

George

George Thebarge
Durham Town Planner
630 Hallowell Rd
Durham, ME 04222
townplanner@durhammaine.gov
207-353-2561

PLANNING BOARD PACKET AUGUST 2 2023 PAGE 70


	Draft Findings of Fact Liesure Campground.pdf
	a. All RV sites will be provided with sewer hookups.
	b. The applicant will construct a sewer collection piping system that will deliver wastewater from the RV sites to five wastewater disposal fields each serving between 22 and 24 sites.
	c. The applicant submitted a preliminary site evaluation by Stewart’s Soil & Septic verifying that soils are adequate to support the proposed wastewater disposal system.
	d. The preliminary site evaluation shows 300-foot well exclusion zones required for the common wells used by the campground.
	e. The applicant’s submissions are inconsistent as to whether septic treatment fields will be in well exclusion zones.
	f. The applicant submitted a hand-drawn layout of the sewer conveyance lines to the septic fields.
	g. The applicant submitted a hand-drawn layout of the water distribution system.
	h. The applicant submitted a communication from Scott P Temple documenting a flow test on a drilled well in 2016 that produced 28,800 gallons per day.
	a. The applicant submitted an email from Tony Fontaine of the Maine Department of Transportation stating that MDOT has no record of an Entrance Permit being issued for the location.
	b. The email further indicates that the entrance is “grandfathered” per MDOT Access Management regulations as long as there is no change in use.
	c. The email goes on to state that the entrance predates MDOT regulations that went into effect in May of 2002 and no permit review would be needed to expand its use.
	d. The entrance is located on Route 136, a State Highway that has regular traffic as well as trucking traffic.
	e. The applicant has stated that there would be a slow increase in traffic due to the phasing and seasonal nature of the use.
	f. The applicant has provided no details on the internal circulation drives in terms of widths or directions of travel lanes or on pedestrian facilities.
	a.  The applicant has stated that no school enrollment will be generated by the project.
	b. The applicant has stated that no buildings are associated with the expansion that would require fire protection.
	c. The applicant doesn’t foresee any need for increased law enforcement.
	d. The applicant has provided no information as to the proposed internal drive system to verify access for Public Safety vehicles.
	e. There is an existing transmission tower on the property and the applicant has provided documents indicating easements exist for that use.
	f. The applicant has not provided information as to whether the presence of the tower will present any safety issues for RV park residents in terms of fall zones from the tower or access to the tower by unauthorized personnel.
	a. The applicant has submitted a Wetland, Stream, and Cursory Vernal Pool Delineation Report performed by Main-Land Development Consultants, Inc.
	b. That report indicates that no significant vernal pools or potential vernal pools exist on the site.
	c. The report indicates that no streams are on the site.
	d. The report indicates the presence of a small vernal pool of just under 2000 sq. ft. that appears to be a man-made pond located between Route 136 and the gravel access road near the front of the property.
	e. The Existing Conditions Plan shows a much larger wetland system located between the transmission tower and the proposed expansion that is not mentioned in the report.
	f. The applicant has stated that all sites are wooded and minimal clearing of trees will occur.
	g. The applicant has stated that future sites and roads will be built off existing logging roads.
	a. The applicant has stated that the area is characterized by residential homes, home businesses, commercial businesses and farms.
	b. The applicant has stated that the nearest house is 400 feet away. It is not clear if that distance is from the property line, the existing RV park, or the proposed expansion.
	c. The applicant has stated that all RVs will be screened by the natural landscape.
	d. The applicant has stated that from 400 of 100 feet minimum from property line.
	e. The applicant refers to a Google map submitted with the application.
	a. The applicant has stated that office hours are 9:00 to 9:00.
	b. The applicant has stated that pool hours are 9:00 to dusk.
	c. The applicant has stated that quiet time is 10:00 pm to 7:00 am.
	d. The applicant has stated that the occupants are mostly seasonal workers and are very quiet.
	e. The applicant has stated that there is no tenting.
	a. The applicant submitted an Agent’s Certificate identifying Kenneth P. Huot and Gwenn M. Huot as company members of Durham Leisure Holdings LLC.
	b. The applicant submitted a 2016 annual filing report with the Maine Secretary of State characterizing Durham Leisure Holdings LLC as a land holding company.
	c. The applicant submitted a deed of transfer from the estate of Harold Cochrane to Durham Leisure Holdings LLC.
	d. The applicant submitted two exhibits for a communications and access and utility easements along with a map showing access to the transmission tower.
	a. The applicant stated that the project is estimated to cost $700,000 +/- and the project will be financed from personal savings.
	b. The applicant submitted a letter from Bangor Savings Bank stating that the applicant has deposit accounts in excess of $675,000.
	c. The applicant submitted a receipt from the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers.
	d. The applicant submitted a hand drawn electrical distribution system.
	e. The applicant submitted a campground license from the Maine Department of Health and Human Services.
	f. The applicant stated he is using Main-Land Development as a consultant.
	1.  .

	LD 2003 IMPLEMENTATION AUGUST 2023.pdf
	LD 2003 Implementation
	Current Durham Requirements 
	LD 2003 Requirements (Effective July 1, 2024)
	DURHAM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN APPROACH
	POTENTIAL OUTCOMES OF PLANNING BOARD PROPOSAL
	LD 2003 Requirements (Effective July 1, 2024)

	DRAFT AMENDMENTS HOUSING DENSITY.pdf
	ATTCH A.1 DRAFT AMENDMENTS HOUSING DENSITY.pdf
	ARTICLE 4:  SPATIAL STANDARDS IN ZONING DISTRICTS
	Section 4.1 DISTRICT REQUIREMENTS

	ARTICLE 5: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
	Section 4.1 ACCESSORY APARTMENTS


	ATTCH A DRAFT AMENDMENTS HOUSING DENSITY.pdf
	ARTICLE 19: DEFINITIONS
	Section 19.1. DEFINITIONS






